
2017-07-27 Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Thursday, July 27, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD)

11603 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA 96161



AGENDA
 

12.1. July 2017 Employee of the Month.pdf
 
12.2. Karen Sessler MD Receives Spirit of Giving Award.pdf
 

12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

13. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

2017-04-27 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT
Minutes.pdf
 
2017-06-20 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT
Minutes.pdf
 
2017-06-22 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT
Minutes.pdf
 

14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes

14.2. Financial Report

14.3.1. CEO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
 
14.3.2. COO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
 
14.3.3. CNO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
 
14.3.4. CIO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
 

14.3. Informational Reports

2017-06-28 Adjourned Regular Board Meeting_DRAFT
Minutes.pdf
 

14.2.1. Financial Report - June 2017.pdf
 

14. CONSENT CALENDAR

15.1. Mammography Replacement Project Bid.pdf
 
15.2. Cannabis Land Use Considerations.pdf
 
15.3. General Obligation Bond Tax Rate for FY2017-2018.pdf
 

15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION

16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION

2017-07-27 Regular Board Meeting_FINAL Agenda.pdf
 

ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
 

12.3. Beckers top 62 Critical Access Hospitals.pdf
 

13.1. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Consent Agenda.pdf
 

14.3.5. CMO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
 

15.4. FY18 Budget - Rate Increase.pdf
 

Meeting Book - 2017-07-27 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

7/27/17 Agenda

Page 4

Page 7

Page 8

Page 10

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 16

Page 21

Page 22

Page 52

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

Page 64

Page 65

Page 70

Page 83

Page 96

Page 2 of 124



16.1.1. Credentialing and Peer Review Presentation.pdf
 

16.1. Board Education

16.1.2. Estes Park Conference discussion
No related materials.

18.1. 2017-07-11 Board Quality Committee_Agenda.pdf
 
18.2. 2017-07-24 Board Personnel-Retirement
Subcommittee_Agenda.pdf
 

18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

16.2. Board Strategic Goals
No related materials.

17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF
NECESSARY

18.3. 2017-07-25 Board Finance Committee_Agenda.pdf
 

ITEMS 19 - 24: See Agenda

25. ADJOURN

Page 100

Page 120

Page 122

Page 124

Page 3 of 124



 

Page 1 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

AGENDA 
 

Thursday, July 27, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 

11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT AUDIENCE   
This is an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any closed session item appearing before the Board on 
this agenda. Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Clerk of the Board 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.   

 
5. CLOSED SESSION   

5.1. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: First Quarter 2017 Quality Dashboard Report – Closed Session 
Number of items: One (1) 
 

5.2. Report Involving Trade Secrets (Health & Safety Code § 32106)   
Proposed New Program: One (1) item 
Estimated date of public disclosure: 10/31/2017 
 

5.3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Gov. Code § 54957)   
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
 

5.4. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
06/22/2017  
 

5.5. TIMED ITEM – 5:30PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 
 

6. DINNER BREAK 
APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 

 
7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 

 
8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
9. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 
10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  

Page 4 of 124



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 27, 2017 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board 
Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the 
Board cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where 
appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting.  
 

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
This is an opportunity for members of the Employee Associations to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.   

 
12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

12.1. July 2017 Employee of the Month ........................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
12.2. Karen Sessler, M.D. receives 2017 Spirit of Giving Award ....................................................ATTACHMENT 
12.3. TFHD named on Becker’s Top 62 Critical Access Hospitals to Know list ..............................ATTACHMENT 
 

13. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
13.1. Medical Executive Committee (MEC) Meeting Consent Agenda .........................................ATTACHMENT 

MEC recommends the following for approval by the Board of Directors: Revised ENT Privilege Form 
(to include privileges at IVCH) and Revised RN Anticoagulation Protocol (outpatient clinics). 
 

14. CONSENT CALENDAR 
These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.  
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar for 
discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar.   

14.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
4/27/2017, 6/20/2017, 6/22/2017, 6/28/2017 ......................................................................ATTACHMENT 

14.2. Financial Report 
14.2.1. Financial Report- June 2017 .........................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

14.3. Staff Reports (Information Only) 
14.3.1. CEO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.3.2. COO Board Report........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.3.3. CNO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.3.4. CIO Board Report .........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.3.5. CMO Board Report .......................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

 
15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

15.1. Mammography Replacement Project Bid  ..........................................................................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will review and consider for approval a bid for the replacement of 
mammography equipment. 

15.2. Cannabis Land Use Considerations ......................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will discuss and consider input to the Town of Truckee’s cannabis land 
use dialogue. 

15.3. Resolution 2017-04 General Obligation Bond Property Tax Rate Calculation ...................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will review and consider for approval a resolution regarding the General 
Obligation (GO) Bond Property Tax Rate Calculation. 

15.4. Approval of TFHD Rate Increase Proposal ...........................................................................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Director will consider a rate increase for approval. 

Page 5 of 124



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 27, 2017 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

 
16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

16.1. Board Education 
16.1.1. Credentialing Peer Review Process ....................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

Director of Medical Staff Services will give a presentation on physician credentialing and 
peer review processes. 

16.1.2. Estes Park Conference 
Executive Director of Governance will review opportunities for board education. 

16.2. Board Strategic Goals 
The Board of Directors will discuss its long term strategic goals. 
 

17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
 

18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 
18.1. Quality Committee Meeting – 07/11/2017 ......................................................................ATTACHMENT 
18.2. Personnel – Retirement Subcommittee Meeting – 07/24/2017 .....................................ATTACHMENT 
18.3. Finance Committee Meeting – 07/25/2017 .....................................................................ATTACHMENT 
18.4. Governance Committee Meeting – No meeting held in June. 
18.5. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting held in June. 
 

19. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

20. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
- Tahoe City location for August meeting 

 
21. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 

 
22. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY 

 
23. OPEN SESSION  

 
24. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 

 
25. ADJOURN   

 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is August 24, 2017 at 221 
Fairway Drive, Tahoe City, CA 96145. A copy of the Board meeting agenda is posted on the District’s web site (www.tfhd.com) 
at least 72 hours prior to the meeting or 24 hours prior to a Special Board Meeting. 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices on 
the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate 
participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids or 
other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 6 of 124

http://www.tfhd.com/


 

Employee of the Month, July 2017 
Dean Rinde, CLS- Lab 

 
 

We are honored to announce Dean Rinde, CLS, Lab as our July Employee of the Month.  
 
Dean is an amazing professional and a stellar individual. He serves both Tahoe Forest 
Hospital District and Incline Village Community Hospital.  Dean’s ability and enthusiasm 
to keep up-to-date and improving processes at both labs is impressive. He always takes 
extra steps to communicate and answer questions about patient specimens, patient 
care, and instrument problems- so nothing is left unanswered.  
 
Dean is a trusted and integral part of the team and has all the characteristics that 
define excellence. In any particular situation he listens carefully to the request, seeks to 
understand what is needed and then acts quickly to get the job done, no matter what 
time it is. He shows teamwork in always being available to provide an extra pair of 
hands, participating and sharing his knowledge, experience and expertise in an 
emergency. Dean is an ultimate CLS that all his coworkers can depend on to be upbeat, 
pleasant, approachable, friendly, and constantly treating all members with dignity and 
respect.  
 
Dean meets and exceeds the definition of the TFHS mission and values but most of all 
has been an asset to our hospital by being efficient, dependable, knowledgeable, and 
skilled.  

 

Please join us in congratulating all of our Terrific Nominees! 
 

Jose Chavez- Tech Support- IT 
Brad Wade- Staff Nurse- ER 

Page 7 of 124



 
 

 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE  Contact: Paige Nebeker Thomason  

July 5, 2017      Tahoe Forest Health System  

      Director of Marketing/Communications  

      530.582.6290 

pthomason@tfhd.com 

 
 
 

KAREN SESSLER, MD IS RECIPIENT  

OF TAHOE FOREST HEALTH SYSTEM’S 

TOM AND PAM HOBDAY SPIRIT OF GIVING AWARD  

www.tfhd.com 
 

 

(Tahoe/Truckee. Calif.) – Karen Sessler, MD, was presented with the 2017 Spirit of 
Giving award at a ceremony on Tuesday, June 27, 2017. The event was hosted by the 
Tahoe Forest Health System Foundation and was held at Martis Camp in Truckee, 
Califonia.  
 
The Spirit of Giving award is given to an individual, family or organization that has 
made a positive difference and has demonstrated extraordinary dedication to the 
health of the community.   
 
The Spirit of Giving award is the namesake of local residents Tom & Pam Hobday, 
who were honored with the inaugural award in 2007.  
 
Previous Spirit of Giving recipients include:  
Tom and Pam Hobday - 2007 
Randy Hill - 2009 
Patti and Gary Boxeth, 2010 
Billy McCullough - 2013  
 
“Karen Sessler’s years of service to Tahoe Forest Health System has made a positive 
impact on our community and we are proud to honor her contributions,” said 
Martha Simon, Executive Director for Tahoe Forest Health System Foundation.  
 
Karen joined the Tahoe Forest Hospital District Board of Directors in 2000 and 
served for 16 years.    

 

Page 8 of 124

mailto:pthomason@tfhd.com
http://www.tfhd.com/


 

##### 

About Tahoe Forest Health System 

Tahoe Forest Health System, with locations in Truckee, CA, and Incline Village, NV, 

offers 24-hour emergency care, a total joint orthopedic program including direct anterior 

hip replacement surgery, physician multi-specialty clinics, OB department, and CoC-

accredited cancer center. With a strong focus on high quality patient care, community 

collaboration, clinical excellence and innovation, Tahoe Forest Health System is a UC 

Davis Rural Center of Excellence. For a complete list of physician specialties and 

services, visit www.tfhd.com. 

 

 

High res photo attached  - Spirit of Giving.jpg  - Karen Sessler with past Spirit of Giving 

Award recipients – L to R: Billy McCullough, Randy Hill, Karen Sessler, MD, Pam 

Hobday, Patti Boxeth, Gary Boxeth 
 

 

Page 9 of 124

http://www.tfhd.com/


EMBARGOED UNTIL                     
7/10/2017 10 a.m. CT 
Contact: Laura Dyrda    
Email: ldyrda@beckershealthcare.com 

 

 

Becker's Hospital Review Names 62 Critical Access 

Hospitals to Know  

 

 

CHICAGO (July 10, 10 a.m. CDT) — Becker's Hospital Review is pleased to release the 2017 

edition of its list of 62 Critical Access Hospitals to Know. 

 

The critical access hospitals featured on this list have a reputation for superior service and care. 

All hospitals featured on this list have 25 or fewer inpatient beds and an annual average length of 

stay no more than 96 hours for acute care. These institutions also offer emergency care and are 

located at least 35 miles away from any other hospital. 

 

To develop this list, the Becker's Healthcare editorial team examined the rakings and awards 

from organizations such as iVantage Health Analytics, Healthgrades, the National Rural Health 

Association, Truven Health Analytics, Women's Choice Award and Leapfrog Group. The team 

also considered the hospital's community impact and reputation for innovation. 

 

The full list features individual profiles of all hospitals on the list. 

 

The full list can be read here: http://bit.ly/2rRdhyl  
 

Sponsored By:  

 

 

athenahealth® partners with hospital and ambulatory clients to drive clinical and financial 

results. We offer network-based medical record, revenue cycle, patient engagement, care 

coordination, and population health services, as well as Epocrates® and other point-of-care 

mobile apps. 

athenahealth connects care across a national network of 87,000 providers and 91.7 million 

patients. Our network provides clients better insight across their own organization as well as the 

ability to learn from the experience of every other provider on the network. Throughout the 

network, we infuse the knowledge clients need to thrive in a changing industry directly into their 

workflow, from clinical guidelines to payer rules. We take on back-office work at scale so 

providers can focus on patients, not paperwork, and get paid more, faster. 

 

 

Page 10 of 124

http://bit.ly/2rRdhyl


EMBARGOED UNTIL                     
7/10/2017 10 a.m. CT 
Contact: Laura Dyrda    
Email: ldyrda@beckershealthcare.com 

 

 

Note: This list is not an endorsement of included hospitals, health systems or associated 

healthcare providers, and organizations cannot pay for inclusion on this list. Organizations are 

presented in alphabetical order. 
 

 
About Becker’s Hospital Review 

Becker's Hospital Review is a monthly publication offering up-to-date business and legal news and 

analysis relating to hospitals and health systems. Articles are geared toward high-level hospital leaders, 

and we work to provide valuable information, including hospital and health system news, best practices 

and legal guidance specifically for these decision-makers. Each issue of Becker's Hospital Review reaches 

more than 18,000 people, primarily acute care hospital CEOs, CFOs and CIOs. 

 

### 

Page 11 of 124



 

 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
   CONFIDENTIAL  
   PLEASE DO NOT REPRODUCE OR DISTRIBUTE   
  This is a Medical Staff Committee document protected by Sec. 1157 of the Calif. Evidence Code  
 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, July 27, 2017 
 

 
REFERRED BY: 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 

 
RECOMMEND 

 

 

MEDICAL STAFF During the July 20, 2017 meeting of the Medical Executive Committee, a motion was 
made, seconded, and carried to recommend approval of the following to the Board of 
Directors: 

1. Department of Surgery and 
Anesthesia Committee 

 Revised ENT Privilege Form (to include privileges at IVCH) 

 Revised RN Anticoagulation Protocol (outpatient clinics) 
 

Recommend 
approval 

 

Page 12 of 124



 

Page 1 of 1 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Thursday, April 27, 2017 at 1:30 p.m. 
Tahoe Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10054 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting called to order at 1:40 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:    Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board President; Gregory Jellinek, M.D., Vice President; Dale 
Chamblin, Treasurer; Alyce Wong, R.N., Board Member  

 
Other:  David Ruderman, Assistant General Counsel  
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
4. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

4.1. Board Training 
General Counsel provided AB1234 ethics training to the Board of Directors.  

 
5. ADJOURN   
Meeting adjourned at 3:45 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 124



 

Page 1 of 2 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, June 20, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. 
Eskridge Conference Room – Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:  Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board President; Dale Chamblin, Treasurer; Randy Hill, Secretary; Alyce 
Wong, R.N., Board Member  

 
Staff in attendance: Harry Weis, Chief Executive Officer; Judy Newland, Chief Operating Officer; Crystal 
Betts, Chief Financial Officer; Jake Dorst, Chief Information & Innovation Officer; Martha Simon, 
Director of Tahoe Forest Health System Foundation; Paige Thomason, Director of Marketing and 
Communications; Martina Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
4. BOARD MEMBER CANDIDATE INTERVIEWS 
Sarah Wolfe joined the meeting at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Board conducted interview with candidate Sarah Wolfe. 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ms. Wolfe departed the meeting at 9:15 a.m. 
Marc Pado joined the meeting at 9:17 a.m. 
 
Board conducted interview with candidate Marc Pado. 
Discussion was held. 
 
Mr. Pado departed the meeting at 9:30 a.m. 
Katherine Miller joined the meeting at 9:36 a.m. 
 
Board conducted interview with candidate Katherine Miller. 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ms. Miller departed the meeting at 9:57 a.m. 
Meeting recessed at 9:57 a.m. 
Meeting reconvened at 10:08 a.m. 
Art King joined the meeting at 10:08 a.m. 
 

Page 14 of 124



Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 20, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Board conducted interview with candidate Art King. 
Discussion was held. 
 
Mr. King departed the meeting at 10:23 a.m. 
Sandra Golze joined the meeting at 10:24 a.m. 
 
Board conducted interview with candidate Sandra Golze. 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ms. Golze departed the meeting at 10:38 a.m. 
Stacy De La Rosa joined the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 
 
Board conducted interview with candidate Stacy De La Rosa. 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ms. De La Rosa departed the meeting at 10:54 a.m. 
Mary Brown joined the meeting at 10:59 a.m. 
 
Board conducted interview with candidate Mary Brown. 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ms. Brown departed the meeting at 11:09 a.m. 
 
No public comment was received. 
 
Meeting recessed at 11:10 a.m. 
Meeting reconvened at 11:24 a.m. 
Sarah Jackson joined the meeting at 11:24 a.m. to take minutes for Clerk of the Board. 
 
Board deliberated on candidates. 
 
Clerk of the Board returned to the meeting at 11:37 a.m. 
 
5. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

5.1. Board Vacancy Appointment 
Discussion was held. 

 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Wong, seconded by Director Hill, to appoint Mary 

Brown to the vacant board seat. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
6. ADJOURN   
Meeting adjourned at 11:40 a.m. 

Page 15 of 124



 

Page 1 of 5 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Thursday, June 22, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 

11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:  Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board President; Dale Chamblin, Treasurer; Randy Hill, Secretary; Alyce 
Wong, R.N., Board Member  
 
Staff in attendance: Harry Weis, Chief Executive Officer; Judy Newland, Chief Nursing Officer; Matt 
Mushet, In-House Counsel; Martina Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 
 
Other: David Ruderman, Assistant General Counsel 
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
Board President noted an additional item under Item 6.3. would be discussed.  
 
4. INPUT AUDIENCE   
No public comment was received. 
 
5. BOARD MEMBER APPOINTMENT 
An oath of office was administered to newly appointed board member, Mary Brown.  

 
6. CLOSED SESSION   

6.1. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Corporate Compliance Report – Closed Session 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

6.2. Liability Claims (Gov. Code § 54956.95) 
Claimant: Deb Baldwin 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

6.3. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Gov. Code § 54957.6) 
Name of Negotiator to Attend Closed Session: Charles Zipkin, M.D. 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

6.4. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
05/25/2017 

Page 16 of 124



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 22, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 
Discussion was held on a privileged item. 

 
6.5. TIMED ITEM – 5:30PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 
Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 
7. DINNER BREAK 
 
8. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting reconvened at 6:00 p.m. 

 
9. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
General Counsel stated there were no reportable actions on items 6.1. and 6.3.  On item 6.2., the 
Board of Directors voted 5-0 to reject the personal injury claim of Deb Baldwin. Items 6.4. and 6.5. 
were unanimously approved by the board. 
 
10. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
Board President removed item 16.3. from the agenda. 
 
11. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
Public comment was received from Susie Ternay and Lisa Holden. 

 

12. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
Public comment was received from the new Employee Association of Professionals President, Juan 
Abarca-Sanchez. 
 
13. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

13.1. Christine Smigel was named Employee of the Month for June 2017. 
 

14. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
14.1. Medical Executive Committee (MEC) Meeting Consent Agenda 

MEC recommends the following for approval by the Board of Directors: proposed amendments to 
Medical Staff Bylaws, Annual Clinical Policy and Procedure Approvals for Diagnostic 
Imaging/Radiation Safety Policies and Procedures and 2017 Emergency Operations plan. 

Discussion was held. 
No public comment received. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Wong seconded by Director Chamblin, to approve the 
proposed amendments to Medical Staff Bylaws as presented. Roll call vote taken. 
Wong – AYE 
Brown – AYE 
Hill – AYE 
Chamblin – AYE 
Zipkin – AYE 

 

Page 17 of 124



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 22, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 5 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Hill, to approve the 
Annual Clinical Policy and Procedure Approvals for Diagnostic Imaging/Radiation 
Safety Policies and Procedures and 2017 Emergency Operations plan as 
presented. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Wong, Chamblin, Hill and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
15. CONSENT CALENDAR 

15.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
5/25/2017 

15.2. Financial Report 
15.2.1. Financial Report- May 2017 

15.3. Contracts 
15.3.1. John Hortareas, D.O. – Hospitalist Services Agreement 
15.3.2. Gerald Schaffer, M.D. – Professional Services Agreement – Multi-Specialty Clinic 
15.3.3. Chelsea Wicks, M.D. – Professional Services Agreement – Multi-Specialty Clinic 
15.3.4. Sierra Nevada Oncology – Professional Services Agreement 
15.3.5. Kevin Cahill – Call Coverage Agreement 
15.3.6. Joseph Logan Norris – Independent Contractor Agreement 

15.4. Staff Reports (Information Only) 
15.4.1. CEO Board Report 
15.4.2. COO Board Report 
15.4.3. CNO Board Report 
15.4.4. CIO Board Report 
15.4.5. CMO Board Report 

 
Director Chamblin pulled item 15.2.1. Financial Report – May 2017 from the consent calendar. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Chamblin, to approve the 
consent calendar as presented without Item 15.2.1. Financial Report. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
16. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

16.1. Election of Board Vice President 
Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Hill, to appoint Randy 
Hill as Vice President and Alyce Wong as Secretary. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
16.2. Tahoe Forest Healthcare Services Board Member Appointment 

Page 18 of 124



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 22, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 4 of 5 

Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Brown, to approve the 
appointment of Dr. Jeff Fountain to the Tahoe Forest Healthcare Services board. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
16.3. Chief Executive Officer Employment Agreement 

Item was removed from the agenda. 
 

16.4. Policy Review 
16.4.1. ABD-21 Physician and Professional Service Agreements 

Discussion was held. 
 
Public comment was received by Danny Buchanan. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Hill, seconded by Director Wong, to approve the ABD-21 
Physician and Professional Service Agreements policy as presented. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
17. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

17.1. Master Planning 
Discussion was held. 
 
Public comment was received from Dr. Larry Heifetz. 
 

17.2. Board Education 
17.2.1. Legislative Update 

Discussion was held. 
 

17.3. CEO Incentive Compensation 
Discussion was held. 
 
Public comment received from Dr. Shawni Coll. 
 
Board would like to continue agenda item. Motion will be made at the close of meeting to adjourn to a date 
and time certain. 

 
18. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
Discussion was held on item 15.2.1. 
 
Director Chamblin asked that the minutes reflected the following items: 

Page 19 of 124



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 22, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 The cash investment detail on page 147 of the packet was reported in error and should be 
approximately $81,600,000. 

 Budget will be delayed, most likely until August. 

 The District did a follow up to its fire risk assessment evaluation. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve item 
15.2.1. Financial Report – May 2017 with correction presented. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
19. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

19.1. Governance Committee Meeting – 06/14/2017 
Director Hill provided an update from the recent Governance Committee meeting. 
Staff directed to begin working on bylaws revisions. 

19.2. Finance Committee Meeting – 06/20/2017 
None. 

19.3. Personnel Committee Meeting – No meeting held in June. 
19.4. Quality Committee Meeting – No meeting held in June. 
19.5. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting held in June. 
 

20. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
None.  
 
21. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
None.  
 
22. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
None.  
 
23. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY 
Not applicable. 
 
24. OPEN SESSION  

 
25. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 
Not applicable. 
 
26. ADJOURN   
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Wong, to continue this 
meeting to Wednesday, June 28, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. in the Eskridge Conference 
Room. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

Page 20 of 124



 

Page 1 of 1 

 
ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Wednesday, June 28, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. 
Eskridge Conference Room – Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:  Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board President; Randy Hill, Vice President; Dale Chamblin, Treasurer; 
Alyce Wong, R.N., Secretary; Mary Brown, Board Member  

 
Staff in attendance: Harry Weis, Chief Executive Officer; Crystal Betts, Chief Financial Officer; Judy 
Newland, Chief Operations Officer; Alex MacLennan, Chief Human Resources Officer; Ted Owens, 
Executive Director of Governance and Business Development; Martina Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
4. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
No public comment was received. 

 

5. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
5.1. CEO Incentive Compensation Criteria 

Discussion was held. 
 
6. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
The board would like metrics to be developed for core measures at the next Quality Committee and 
employee engagement survey at the next Personnel Committee. 
 
7. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
None. 
 
8. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
None. 
 
9. ADJOURN   
Meeting was adjourned at 10:55 a.m. 
 

Page 21 of 124



Page 22 of 124



Page 23 of 124



Page 24 of 124



Page 25 of 124



Page 26 of 124



Page 27 of 124



Page 28 of 124



Page 29 of 124



Page 30 of 124



Page 31 of 124



Page 32 of 124



Page 33 of 124



Page 34 of 124



Page 35 of 124



Page 36 of 124



Page 37 of 124



Page 38 of 124



Page 39 of 124



Page 40 of 124



Page 41 of 124



Page 42 of 124



Page 43 of 124



Page 44 of 124



Page 45 of 124



Page 46 of 124



Page 47 of 124



Page 48 of 124



Page 49 of 124



Page 50 of 124



Page 51 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

Board Informational Report 

By: Harry Weis DATE:  7/17/17

CEO 

We are happy to report that we have been in the new beautiful Joseph Family Center for 
Women and Newborn Care for a few weeks now.  Our kitchen expansion has officially opened 
as well with the approval to use the new Joseph Family Center.  We have some outside 
sidewalk and landscaping work to finish during August for completion of that area of the 
campus. 

We had a Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) validation survey where they 
perform their own review of the accreditation work performed by the Healthcare Facilities 
Accreditation Program (HFAP) organization about two months ago regarding Incline Village 
Community Hospital and that validation survey went really well. 

We recently completed the annual Gene Upshaw Memorial Golf event which was a great 
success. 

Also it was great to attend the Incline Village Community Hospital Auxiliary Group Lobster 
feed.  It was sold out and it was great to see many local friends come together to support 
Incline Village Community Hospital. 

Our entire team is feeling the growing pressure with a very positive spirit to successfully 
complete the EPIC electronic health record conversion and related business software.  This is 
a major challenge for our team in every way and I’m confident they will do well. 

Our other five critical strategies continue to be a strong focus for the team as well.  I 
congratulate our team for its spirit and commitment to make these critical, transformational 
changes; this allows us to be on point and focus on delivering a more sustainable healthcare 
system for the future.   

As reported in earlier months, our journey to affiliate with our local OB/GYN group continues 
with a focus on completion this calendar year.   

We are continuing to have discussions with our local primary care group as we look for win/win 
solutions to improve access to primary care in our region. 

I believe we are making great progress in finding a new Urologist and a new GI specialist.  Our 
CMO will have more to say on that in her report.  We continue to recruit for Primary Care, 
finalize General Surgery, look for Neurology, and add an OB physician as well.  We have 
several new physicians coming later this calendar year which we are excited about! 

Page 52 of 124



Our senior leadership team has a growing concern about the volume and quality of legislation 
that is being constructed in Sacramento and in Washington.  We remain very vigilant and 
active at both the state and federal level as there is clearly unprecedented lack of knowledge 
with elected officials on the topics they are writing bills on and the harmful impacts of their 
proposed legislation. This comment is neither a Republican nor Democrat comment as it 
applies to both. 
 
We are strong proponents of innovation in America and believe that small regional studies 
could be conducted on different models of care holding all providers harmless during the trial 
period so any positive or negative impacts are known before something goes national.   
 
We do believe there are huge (intended or unintended) consequences to all of the healthcare 
reform legislation we have seen to date which will be exponentially expensive to correct the 
harm caused. 
 
We believe strongly in individual and group education regarding all views on healthcare reform.  
We believe a thoroughly education population can see where the real true gold is relative to 
what is the correct or incorrect policy changes for the future and in that context I have shared 
comments as attachments here from: 
 
Warrant Buffett’s thoughts on healthcare for America. 
The Congressional Budget Office evaluation of the Senate Healthcare bill of a few weeks ago. 
A link to a video from a website:  http://fixithealthcare.com 
A letter from Scripps Healthcare System in San Diego from Chris Van Gorder 
A letter from Kaiser CEO Bernard Tyson 
And a letter from Cleveland Clinic CEO Dr. Toby Cosgrove 
 
 

Page 53 of 124

http://fixithealthcare.com/


Page 54 of 124



Page 55 of 124



Page 56 of 124



Page 57 of 124



Page 58 of 124



Page 59 of 124



Page 60 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

    
 Board COO Report 
 
By: Judith B. Newland  DATE: July 2017 
 
Just Do It” – Demonstrate measurable improvements annually in both Quality and Patient Satisfaction. 
 
Incline Village Community Hospital had a successful unannounced two day CMS Validation Survey in June.  The purpose 
of the survey is for CMS to monitor the survey work of deemed authority agencies such as Healthcare Facilities 
Accreditation Program (HFAP).  Both TFH and IVCH had their successful three year unannounced deemed accreditation 
survey in April of this year.  The surveyors commented positively on the hospital’s staff commitment to services and 
requested if they could direct other small hospitals to contact IVCH regarding their quality monitoring processes and 
documentation.   
 
For the third year in a row Tahoe Forest Hospital was named in Becker’s Hospital Review’s list of “62 Critical Access 
Hospitals to Know” in the United States on July 10, 2016.  There are more than 1,332 critical access hospitals in the 
United States and 34 are in California. Tahoe Forest Hospital is the only critical access hospital in California to receive 
this prestigious designation.  This designation demonstrates the high excellence in care and service we provide to our 
community and visitors.  Our focus is to provide compassionate and high quality care and this designation demonstrates 
how staff and physicians go the extra mile for our patients. Thank you to the staff for their dedication and commitment 
to serve those patients and families who walk through our doors.   
 
Tahoe Forest Health System continues their commitment to providing the Perfect Care Experience for all individuals who 
receive services throughout the organization.   For the month of July the service tip is to: LIVE OUR VALUES, EVERYDAY, 
EVERY ENCOUNTER. Every employee has an opportunity to be proactive and work together to improve our patient 
satisfaction scores.    
 
Develop solid connections and relationships within the communities we serve.  
 
The Incline Village Community Hospital Foundation (IVCHF) had a successful Donor Appreciation Event on June 28, 2017.  
The event was held at the Kern Schumacher estate In Incline Village. There were approximately 120 guests in 
attendance.   
 
Creating and implementing a New Master Plan 
Construction Update: 

 The new Joseph Family Women and Newborn Care Center opened and began seeing patients on Monday, June 
26th.  

 Hospice Threat Store opened for business Monday, July 10th at their new location, 1038 River Park Place.   

 Old Interim OB space maintenance work (painting, TV replacement, nurse call system replacement, etc.) is in 
process of being completed for move in by Medical/Surgical unit 

 Surgeon’s Lounge maintenance (new paint, flooring, etc) completed. 

 South Entrance will be closed beginning Monday, August 7th for 3 weeks to complete Measure C project of fire 
exit improvements and patio replacement.   

 A parking survey has begun to obtain information on the use of parking by patients, visitors and staff.  The 
survey will assist in determining current and future parking space needs.  

 

Page 61 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board CNO Report 

 
By: Karen Baffone, RN, MS  DATE:  July 2017 

 Chief Nursing Officer 
 

 
Strategy Two:  Choosing and implementing the correct new Electronic Health Record for 
our system that spans all physician, OP and IP services. Plus acquiring any other critical 
companion business operations software.  
 
Clinical Operational Readiness (CORe) readiness teams and the Access and Revenue Cycle 
Readiness have begun to integrate the gaps in any areas of the organization as it relates to the 
implementation of EPIC.  This process requires a high level of cooperation between the finances 
and operations of our hospital system.  Education of the certified trainers began in July and we 
continue to be on track for November 1, 2017 implementation. Temporary staff related to clinical 
operations is onboarding. 
 
Strategy Four:  Developing and implementing a comprehensive Care Coordination Plan 
coupled with Patient Navigation for all patients that touch our healthcare system. 
 
Care Coordination and Navigation:  There were a total of 35 referrals from primary care physicians 
to our Wellness Programs.  This comes after education of our physicians and the MSC staff.  The 
majority of the patients have been referred to 2 or more services offered through the Medically 
Managed Health Programs. 
 
CHNA:  The Community Health Needs Assessment will be completed in the month of September.  
Results of that survey should be completed by the end of the calendar year 2017. 
 
Strategy Five: “Just Do It” Continue to show measureable annual improvements in Quality, 
and Patient Satisfaction.  
 

o The nursing leadership team will be collaborating on information that was collected 
during the last 90 days of Administrative Safety Rounds. 

o The team will add ancillary staff to this already established meeting for daily updates 
in preparation of the go-live process.  This meeting will continue after the 
implementation of EPIC to address any obstacles/gaps in our implementation 
process 

o Case Management structure and function in being evaluates to improve status 
changes as well as the integration of Case Management and Care Coordination. 

o A Policy Oversight Committee will be implemented after the go-live of EPIC.  The 
goal of this committee will be to provide a standardized process for the development 
and adherence to our policies  

 

Page 62 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

 
   

  Board Informational Report 
 

By: Jake  Dorst        DATE:  7-17-2017 

 CIIO 
 

 
IT Clinical/Interfaces Team Update     
 
Mercy Epic  

 Order Sets: Review by specialty groups has begun.  All build of new order sets needed 
is completed by Mercy and we are reviewing those now.  Working on a process with 
Mercy for updates/changes post go live with timely notification for our P&T committee 
review.  We have requested this of Mercy.  Feedback from doctors so far is that these 
are good just different and will take some getting used to. 

 TFH resources for Physician support and trainers:  We do not have any staff currently 
going through training to become physician trainers.  This will be handled by Mercy for 
go live and we will train three people post go live.   

 Additional support for physicians post go live to get through the first month and all of the 
hospitalists is being defined.  We do not have any physician super users or on site 
physician support.   

 Mercy will be here for two weeks then we need two to three more weeks of coverage to 
assure we have supported all hospitalists through their rotation and all inpatient docs.  
This is all for inpatient/orders.  

 Ambulatory, ED and Optime are able to be covered by our staff. 

 Large effort for Interface testing and build.  Progress is being made. 

 Credentialed trainers training began this week. 

 Working on Hardware, contracts, data requirements and project management of 
different aspects of this Enterprise project. The team is all committed to many hours on 
this project.  
 

Project Updates 

 IT is settling in to the new office space at the Pioneer Building. Good reviews about the 
training classroom set up from Mercy team. 

 New Citrix Desktop is being rolled out to more departments 

 Infrastructure Uplift in progress in preparation of the Epic Go-Live in November; the IT 
team is working diligently on a major initiative  to ensure all of the foundation of the 
infrastructure is sound  

 
   

Page 63 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Shawni L. Coll D.O., FACOG  DATE:  July 17, 2017 

 Chief Medical Officer 
 

 
 
1. GOAL: A complete makeover of our Physician service line 

We plan to have four Ob/Gyn's joining the multispecialty group this November (2 as full time 
physicians and 2 will share a position).  We have a signed Letter of Intent with a new urologist, 
Dr. Mark Wainstein (hoping he will start late this Fall) and an offer went out to a new 
gastroenterologist candidate. We continue to make primary care a priority and are still in 
discussions with the TTMG physicians. Two of our newest physicians will start in August; Dr. 
Cathy Colpitts, family medicine, and Dr. Paul Haeder, orthopedic surgeon.  

 
2. GOAL: Electronic Health Record 

We are actively scheduling Epic training for all physicians along with specialized workshops to 
customize the physician's workflow. As we get closer to implementation, the specialty 
champion physicians are reviewing/approving order sets and process changes.  

 
3. GOAL: New Master Space Plan 

We have been working closely with our architect to develop interior footprint designs for the 
second floor of the cancer center. These options will be vetted with the financials to decide the 
most functional and cost efficient space.   

 

4. GOAL:  Just Do It 
Key physician leaders along with all the departments are involved in revamping the peer 
review forms, tracking, and therefore improving the Ongoing Physician Practice Evaluation, 
which occurs every 6 months.  This will help to improve re-credentialing along with improve 
education to physicians and overall quality of our clinical care.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64 of 124



Tahoe Forest Hospital District
Mammography Equipment Replacement July 19, 2017

Bids Received: July 13, 2017

203,965$                     
474,844$                     
125,808$                     

17,870$                       
10% 20,397$                       

Total 842,883$                    

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS 842,883$                     

Owner Furnished Equipment

Contingency/Escalation

RECOMMENDATION FOR AWARD

 Mammography Equipment Replacement 

Construction

Professional Fees 
Administrative Costs

Page 65 of 124



Mammography Equipment Replacement July 19, 2017

Bids Received:  June 13,2017

Element Cost / SF Total Recommended Contractors

1 General Requirements 76,444$                       GGI

2 Sitework/Existing Conditions 4,390$                         GGI

6 Wood & Plastics 6,424$                         GGI

9 Finishes 24,047$                       Contract Flooring/ BT Mancini

21 Fire Suppression 200$                           GGI

22 Plumbing 5,665$                         Intech Mechanical

23 Mechanical 44,795$                       Intch Mechanical/Raglen T&B

26 Electrical 42,000$                       Sac Valley

Subtotal Construction Hard Costs 203,965$                     

Contingency/Escalation 10% 20,397$                       

Owner Furnished Equipment 474,844$                     

Professional Fees 125,808$                     

Administrative Costs 17,870$                       

Total Estimated Construction Cost 842,883$                     

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST 842,883$                     

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

COST SUMMARY BREAKDOWN

Page 66 of 124



Description Quantity UOM Unit Cost UOM Total Notes

CONSTRUCTION HARD COSTS

01-01000 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

01-01300 Administration Requirements
1301 Drawing and Reproduction 1.50 MO 50 MO 75                               
1302 Shipping/Postage 1.50 MO 20 MO 30                               
1310 Project Management- Principal (1/4 Time) 1.50 MO 8,600 MO 12,900                        
1311 Project Management (1/4 Time) 1.50 MO 5,375 MO 8,063                          
1311 Project Superintendency (Full Time) 1.50 MO 21,500 MO 32,250                        
1313 Project Engineer (1/4 Time) 1.50 MO 3,225 MO 4,838                          
1313 Project Administrator (1/4 Time) 2.00 MO 1,935 MO 3,870                          
1321 Photographic Documentation 1 LS 50 LS 50                               
1351 Safety/First/Aid/OSHA 1 LS 25 LS 25                               

Administration Requirements 62,100                        

01-01500 Temporary Facilities
1522 Temp Toilets 1.50 MO 216 MO 324                             
1516 Cellular Charges 1.50 MO 200 MO 300                             
1523 Office Supplies/Equipment 1.50 MO 75 MO 113                             
1532 Miscellaneous Rental 1.50 LS 0 LS -                                 
1551 Vehicle Fuel/Maintenance 1.50 MO 650 MO 975                             

Temporary Facilities 1,712                          

01-01700 Execution Requirements
1741 Progress Cleaning 1.00 LS 2,000 LS 2,000                          
1743 Disposal/Off-Haul 1.50 EA 500 EA 750                             
1744 Final Cleaning 450 SF 1.50 SF 675                             
1761 Protection of Finishes 1.50 MO 150 MO 225                             
1761 General Labor-Daily Cleaning (1/4 Time) 1.50 MO 3,655 MO 5,483                          
1761 Closeout Procedures 1 LS 1,000 LS 1,000                          
1742 Infection Control/Maintenance 1 LS 2,500 LS 2,500                          

Execution Requirements 12,633                        

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 76,444                       

02-00000 EXISTING CONDITIONS

02-40000 Existing Conditions
02 14 16.13 Temp Partitions/Zip Walls 2 EA 200.00 LS 400                             GGI
02 14 16.13 Grind Anchor Bolts 2 MN/HR 95.00 LF 190                             GGI
02 14 16.13 Horizontal Raceway Remove and Relocate 0 MN/HR 95.00 LF -                                 Sac Valley
02 14 16.13 Existing Workstation base remove and relocate 0 MN/HR 95.00 LF -                                 By Owner 
02 14 16.13 Demo Remove Existing Sink 0 MN/HR 95.00 LF -                                 Intech Mechanical
02 14 16.13 Remove Dispose Solid Counter Top 8 MN/HR 95.00 LF 760                             GGI
02 14 16.13 Remove (E) Floor Covering 0 SQFT 10.00 EA -                                 BT Mancini
02 14 16.13 Remove Scale 0 MN/HR 95.00 LF -                                 By Owner
02 14 16.13 Remove Dexa Table 0 MN/HR 95.00 LF -                                 By Owner
02 14 16.13 Remove workstation 0 MN/HR 95.00 LF -                                 By Owner
02 14 16.13 Hard Lid Demo 32 MN/HR 95.00 LF 3,040                          GGI
02 14 16.13 Remove Plumbing Fixtures 0 MN/HR 95.00 LF -                                 Intech Mechanical

Existing Conditions 4,390                          

EXISTING CONDITIONS 4,390                         

06 00 00 WOODS AND PLASTICS

06 41 16 P-L Clad Cabinets
06 40 00 Base Cabinet w/ Drawers 8 LF 500 LF 4,000                          GGI
06 40 00 Solid Surface Tops 8 LF 250 LF 2,000                          GGI
06 40 00 Plywood Sub Tops 8 LF 24 LF 192                             GGI
06 40 00 Backing for Cabinets & Tops 8 LF 29 LF 232                             GGI
06 41 16 P-L Clad Cabinets 6,424                          

WOODS AND PLASTICS 6,424                         

Tahoe Forest Hospital District                                        
Mammography Equipment Replacement 

Recommendation for Award Estimate

Page 67 of 124



09 00 00 FINISHES

09 21 16 Gypsum Board Assemblies

09 22 16 Walls/Ceiling 
09 21 16 Patch/Touch Up- 5/8" Type X/Finish 1 LS 10,729.00 LS 10,729                        Coffey Building

09 21 16 Gypsum Board Assemblies 10,729                        

09 65 00 Resilient Flooring
09 65 16 Sheet Vinyl, Welded Seams w/ Integral Base 1 LS 8,600 LS 8,600                          BT Mancini
09 65 00 Resilient Flooring 8,600                          

09 90 00 Painting & Coating
09 91 13 Interior Painting -  Walls/Ceiling 1 LS 4,718.00 LS 4,718                          Contract Flooring
09 90 00 Painting & Coating 4,718                          

09 00 00 FINISHES 24,047                       

21-00000 FIRE SUPPRESSION

Fire Suppression
Fire Sprinklers/Safe Protect in Place/Relocate if Necessary 1 LS 200.00 LS 200                             GGI
Fire Suppression 200                             

21-00000 FIRE SUPPRESSION 200                            

22-00000 PLUMBING

22 00 00 Plumbing
Demolition / Safe-Off of Existing Fixture/ Add New 1 LS 5,665 LS 5,665                          Intech Mechanical

22-00000 Plumbing 5,665                          

22-00000 PLUMBING 5,665                         

23-00000 HEATING VENTILATING AND AIR CONDITIONING

23-00000 Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning 
Mechanical Demolition/Cut and Cap/Air Distribution/ReHeat Coil 1 LS 24,335 LS 24,335                        Intech Mechanical
HVAC Controls 1 LS 0.00 LS Inc. Intech Mechanical
Test & Balance 1 LS 20,460.00 LS 20,460                        Raglen

23-00000 Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning 44,795                        

HEATING VENTILATING AND AIR CONDITIONING 44,795                        

26-00000 ELECTRICAL

26-00000 Electrical  
Temp Shunt Trip Install 1 LS 42,000.00                LS 42,000                        Sac Valley
Relocate Horz Raceway 0 EA 1,500.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
New Temp Breaker/Disconnect 0 EA 2,500.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
Re-Connect/Relocated Gantry 0 EA 1,500.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
Install New Raceway 0 EA 2,500.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
New Shunt Trip 0 EA 750.00                     EA -                                 Sac Valley
Connect/ New Workstation 0 EA 1,500.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
New Raceway 0 EA 2,500.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
Install old raceway 0 EA 2,000.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
Install EPO Switch 0 EA 1,500.00                  EA -                                 Sac Valley
Relocate Receptical 0 EA 500.00                     EA -                                 Sac Valley

Breaker Disconnect 0 EA 500.00                     EA -                                 Sac Valley
Faucet Sensor and Power 0 EA 500.00                     EA -                                 Sac Valley

26-00000 Electrical  42,000                        Sac Valley

ELECTRICAL 42,000                       

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION HARD COSTS 203,965                     

17-17000 PROJECT CONTINGENCY

17-17000 Project Contingency
1100 Construction Contingency/Escalation 10.00% PC Const Cost PC 20,397                        

 Project Contingency 20,397                        

PROJECT CONTINGENCY 20,397                       

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS 224,362                     

Total SF           450                                        Total Construction Costs per SF 498.58                       

Page 68 of 124



SOFT COSTS

18-18000 EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE, SIGNAGE

018-0000 Equipment, Furniture, Signage
1100 Medical Equipment & Furniture 1 LS 463,262.00 LS 463,262                      KAP

Equipment, Furniture, Signage 463,262                      

18-17000 Equipment, Furniture, Signage Contingency
1700 Contingency/Escalation 3% PC 463,262.00 PC 11,582                        

Equipment, Furniture, Signage Contingency 11,582                        

EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE, SIGNAGE 474,844                     

19-19000 PROFESSIONAL FEES

019-0000 Professional Fees
19000 Cost Estimating/Preconstruction Services 1 MOS 10,000.00 MOS 10,000                        GGI
19000 Public Bid Process 1 LS 30,000.00 LS 30,000                        GGI
19000 Construction Management 10% PC Const Cost/Const Cont PC 22,436                        GGI
20103 Architectural Design - KAP Architects/ CA/ Design 1 LS 26,140.00 LS 26,140                        KAP
20103 KAP Design - Reimbursables/Mileage 1 LS 3,000.00 LS 3,000                          KAP

20103 Structural Design 1 LS 6,412.00 LS 6,412                          KAP

20103 Mechanical/Plumbing Design 1 LS 8,600.00 LS 8,600                          KAP

20103 Electrical Design 1 LS 7,400.00 LS 7,400                          KAP

2500 X Ray 1 LS 570.00 LS 570                             Nason Scanning
2500 I.O.R. Testing 2 MOS 7,500.00 MOS 11,250                        Steve Billings

019-0000 Professional Fees 125,808                      

PROFESSIONAL FEES 125,808                     

20-20000 ADMINISTRATIVE COST

020-0000 Administrative Cost
1300 State Review (OSHPD) 2.00% PC Const/Equip Cost PC 13,984                        
1400 General Liability Insurance 0.80% PC Gen Req/CM PC 791                             
1500 Performance/Payment Bonding 1.25% PC Const Cost/Cont/CM PC 3,095                          
1700 Course of Construction Insurance 0.00% PC Const Cost PC -                                 

020-0000 Administrative Cost 17,870                        

20-20000 ADMINISTRATIVE COST 17,870                       

TOTAL SOFT COSTS 618,522                     

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS 224,362                     

TOTAL SOFT COSTS 618,522                     

SUBTOTAL  DEVELOPMENT COST 842,883                     

ESTIMATED TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST 842,883                     

Total SF           450                                         Price per SF 1,873.07                    

Page 69 of 124



Page 70 of 124



Page 71 of 124



Page 72 of 124



Page 73 of 124



Page 74 of 124



Page 75 of 124



Page 76 of 124



Page 77 of 124



Page 78 of 124



Page 79 of 124



Page 80 of 124



Page 81 of 124



Page 82 of 124



Page 83 of 124



Page 84 of 124



Page 85 of 124



Page 86 of 124



Page 87 of 124



Page 88 of 124



Page 89 of 124



Page 90 of 124



Page 91 of 124



Page 92 of 124



Page 93 of 124



Page 94 of 124



Page 95 of 124



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board and Board Finance Committee 

FROM: Crystal Betts, Chief Financial Officer 

SUBJECT: FY 2018 Rate Increase Recommendation effective 8/1/17 

DATE: July 20, 2017 

BACKGROUND: 

During the annual budget process, an analysis is conducted regarding hospital charges 
to determine if any rate increases are necessary.  Factors reviewed during this analysis 
are as follows:  1) inflationary factors regarding labor, purchased services, and supply 
costs, 2) potential decreases in reimbursement, 3) cash flow requirements for capital 
investment, and 4) cash flow requirements for start-up of new service lines and/or 
programs.  Benchmark data is also used to gauge how the hospital industry has 
positioned itself in regards to charges for cost coverage and future growth.  
Chargemaster data from the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development 
(OSHPD) website is the primary source for the benchmark data.  The data on this 
website is one year old (06/01/2016).   

The analysis and any recommendation for rate increases is usually presented to the 
Board of Directors during the annual budget presentation, generally at a Board Meeting 
in June.  Any recommended rate increases are usually effective August 1st following the 
June meeting.   

Due to numerous unforeseen circumstances during 2017, we are unable to keep to the 
timeline for budget presentation in June 2017, and are presently targeting September 
2017.  However, in order to remain on track with our customary rate implementation 
date of August 1st, analysis was conducted to determine if a rate increase would be 
necessary for the 2018 fiscal year budget. 

Based upon the following factors, it appears a 5% rate increase (in aggregate) would be 
necessary: 

1) Wage increases for staff, in accordance with the bargaining unit agreements, are
a minimum of 2% and as high as 16%, and are effective 7/1/17.

2) We continue to see a rise in our Medi-Cal payor mix, which tends to be our
lowest reimbursement rate.  Due to the uncertainty surrounding the
repeal/replacement of the Affordable Care Act, there is the potential of seeing a
significant shift in our payor mix towards more self-pay, which usually leads to
increased charity care and bad debt and no reimbursement.

Page 96 of 124



3) Inflation estimates for products within each service line, per the Premier
Economic Outlook portfolio dated 4/1/17, reflect increases ranging from 0-6.7%.
These increases by service line are as follows:  Cardiovascular Services 0%,
Clinical Laboratory Services 2.8%, Facilities 3.8%, Imaging 5.6%,
IT/Telecommunications 2.6%, Materials Management 3.3%, Nursing 2.9%,
Pharmacy 4.69%, Purchased Services 6.7%, and Surgical Services 3.5%.

4) The 2018 Capital Budget has been compiled.  Items identified as mission critical
are totaling approximately $22 million.

5) Many programs and services continue to be developed within the health system
that require investment:  Physician services, palliative care, care coordination,
patient navigation, etc.

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based on the analysis, it is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a 5%, in 
aggregate, rate increase, effective 8/1/17.  This rate increase is to our gross charges, 
and should generate an approximate 2.8% in net revenue.  

Page 97 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT

CHARGE COMPARISON

HOSPITAL TO HOSPITAL WITH OUTPATIENT LOWER TIERED PRICING

5% Proposed

Rate Increase Sutter Dignity Prime

Note CPT Current Effective 8/1/17 Percentile Barton Auburn Marshall Sierra St. Mary's 6 Hospital 6 Hospital 6 Hospital 6 Hospital

Reference Code TFHD TFHD Ranking Average Median Memorial Faith Medical Nevada Renown Regional Average Median Average % Var. Median % Var.

Visit - Level 1 (A) 99281 351$     369$    50% 418$     351$     425$     334$     706$     449$     323$     321$     426$     380$     -13.6% -2.9%

Visit - Level 2 (A) (B) 99282 595$     625$    0% 818$     775$     884$     833$     1,119$    893$     717$     654$     850$     858$     -26.5% -27.2%

Visit - Level 3 (A) (B) 99283 909$     954$    17% 1,311$    1,177$    1,239$    1,545$    1,985$    1,451$    1,114$    889$     1,371$    1,345$    -30.4% -29.0%

Visit - Level 4 (A) (B) 99284 1,469$    1,542$    17% 2,204$    2,170$    2,555$    2,691$    2,785$    2,900$    1,785$    1,166$    2,314$    2,623$    -33.3% -41.2%

Visit - Level 5 (A) 99285 2,377$    2,496$    17% 3,267$    3,220$    3,684$    3,939$    3,900$    4,460$    2,755$    1,636$    3,396$    3,792$    -26.5% -34.2%

Basic Metabolic Panel (B) 80048 102$     107$    17% 201$     141$     309$     170$     112$     64$    203$     439$     216$     186$     -50.4% -42.5%

Blood Gas Analysis, including O2 saturation (B) 82805 218$     229$     50% 280$     158$     N/A 524$     88$    N/A N/A N/A 306$     306$     -25.2% -25.2%

Complete Blood Count, automated (B) 85027 72$     76$    33% 107$     89$     210$     119$     55$    41$    102$     144$     112$     110$     -32.4% -31.5%

Complete Blood Count, with differential WBC, automated (B) 85025 92$     97$    33% 134$     109$     275$     122$     63$    43$    127$     213$     141$     125$     -31.3% -22.5%

Comprehensive Metabolic Panel (B) 80053 126$     132$    17% 218$     190$     293$     198$     181$     66$    221$     435$     232$     210$     -43.1% -36.9%

Cratine Kinase (CK), (CPK), Total (B) 82550 84$     88$    33% 114$     96$     231$     130$     68$    47$    131$     104$     119$     117$     -25.6% -24.7%

Lipid Panel (B) 80061 159$     167$    50% 171$     153$     231$     224$     124$     86$    139$     223$     171$     181$     -2.5% -7.9%

Partial Thromboplastin Time (B) 85730 78$     82$    33% 138$     114$     214$     162$     64$    64$    147$     234$     148$     154$     -44.5% -47.0%

Prothrombin Time (B) 85610 51$     54$    17% 83$     59$     113$     77$    55$    49$    62$    173$     88$    70$    -39.3% -23.0%

Thyroid Stimulating Hormone (TSH) (B) 84443 200$     210$    67% 183$     189$     234$     185$     136$     102$     193$     224$     179$     189$     17.4% 11.0%

Troponin, Quantitative (B) 84484 183$     192$    33% 236$     222$     345$     252$     149$     79$    268$     367$     243$     260$     -21.0% -26.1%

Urinalysis, without microscopy (B) 81002-81003 32$     34$    33% 47$     36$     67$    52$    29$    38$    74$    32$    49$    45$    -31.0% -25.3%

Urinalysis, with microscopy (B) 81000-81001 39$     41$    20% 55$     43$     N/A 66$    43$    35$    101$     46$    58$    46$    -29.7% -11.0%

Xray - Chest two views (B) 71020 318$     334$    17% 406$     367$     546$     368$     247$     538$     440$     366$     418$     404$     -20.0% -17.4%

Xray - Lower Back - four views (B) 72110 579$     608$    0% 925$     838$     954$     663$     1,286$    1,217$    722$     1,023$    977$     989$     -37.8% -38.5%

MRI - Head or Brain without contrast followed by contrast (B) 70553 3,858$    4,051$    17% 4,778$    4,660$    5,450$    5,466$    5,779$    3,378$    4,476$    4,844$    4,899$    5,147$    -17.3% -21.3%

Mammography - Screening, Bilateral (B) 77057 290$     305$    0% 441$     407$     477$     336$     485$     602$     N/A N/A 475$     481$     -35.9% -36.7%

US - OB, 14 weeks or more, transabdominal (B) 76805 730$     767$    17% 937$     962$     1,108$    1,042$    902$     698$     1,022$    1,022$    966$     1,022$    -20.6% -25.0%

US - Abdomen complete (B) 76700 730$     767$    0% 1,315$    1,255$    1,830$    1,335$    1,435$    1,590$    1,175$    1,076$    1,407$    1,385$    -45.5% -44.7%

CT Scan - Pelvis, with contrast (B) 72193 2,228$    2,339$    17% 2,977$    2,732$    4,012$    3,361$    3,690$    1,971$    2,865$    2,598$    3,083$    3,113$    -24.1% -24.9%

CT Scan - Head or Brain without contrast (B) 70450 1,464$    1,537$    17% 2,352$    2,390$    3,108$    2,709$    2,964$    1,363$    2,304$    2,476$    2,487$    2,593$    -38.2% -40.7%

CT Scan - Abdomen with contrast (B) 74160 2,228$    2,339$    17% 3,160$    2,879$    4,454$    3,369$    4,233$    1,971$    3,023$    2,734$    3,297$    3,196$    -29.1% -26.8%

Intensive Care Unit 6,823$    7,164$    40% 8,176$    7,164$    9,104$    10,771$    9,184$    6,645$    N/A 6,188$    8,378$    9,104$    -14.5% -21.3%

Medical/Surgical Unit - Private 2,996$    3,146$    20% 3,698$    3,507$    3,955$    4,435$    4,200$    2,944$    N/A 3,507$    3,808$    3,955$    -17.4% -20.5%

Nursery Unit 938$     985$    0% 1,957$    1,373$    1,195$    N/A 3,570$    2,487$    N/A 1,550$    2,201$    2,019$    -55.2% -51.2%

Skilled Nursing Facility 490$     515$    0% 1,389$    593$     N/A 2,981$    N/A 672$     N/A N/A 1,827$    1,827$    -71.8% -71.8%

Average of all 25 common outpatient procedures noted by (B) above 673$     707$    0% 972$     933$     1,267$    1,040$    1,123$    804$     931$     934$     1,016$    987$     -30.4% -28.4%

(C) (C) 

(D) (D) 

Note Reference:

(A) Level 1 - low severity - example a toothache with treatment other than a prescription, Plan B Rx.

Level 2 - low to moderate severity - minor illness with no lab or x-ray other than a simple strep screen or UTI, abrasions, small cuts with no suturing

Level 3 - moderate severity - labs, x-rays, medications simple lacerations with sutures, simple asthma that resolves, sprains

Level 4 - moderate to high severity - IV’s for hydration, IV medications, splinting of fractures that are straight forward, simple chest pain, asthma that needs repeated breathing treatment or medications

Level 5 - high severity - traumas, transfers, GI bleeds, overdoses, sedation for fracture reductions

(B) Charge is listed in the 25 most common outpatient procedures performed in a hospital per the OSHPD web site listed below under Source.

(C) Facility has different tiered pricing for Inpatient and Outpatient.  Pricing for Laboratory reflects the Outpatient pricing.

(D) Facility has different tiered pricing for Inpatient and Outpatient.  Pricing for Diagnostic Imaging reflects the Outpatient pricing.

Charge is lower than TFHD

Charge is higher than TFHD

TFHDs percentile ranking is lower than the 50th

TFHDs percentile ranking is higher than the 50th

Source: California Hospitals - Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (OSHPD) Healthcare Information Division - Annual Financial Data - Hospital Chargemasters ( http://www.oshpd.ca.gov/Chargemaster ), charges effective 6/1/2016.

Nevada Hospitals - MedAssets, 2014 data

Charges for Tahoe Forest Hospital District are as of today.

Definitions: Median - is the middle value in a list ordered from smallest to largest.

N/A - Not Applicable or Not Available

Inclusive of TFHD
E

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

R
o

o
m

L
a
b

o
ra

to
ry

D
ia

g
n

o
s
ti

c
 I

m
a
g

in
g

R
o

o
m

 

R
a
te

s

NEVADACALIFORNIA

Page 98 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT (TFHD)

CHARGE COMPARISON

HOSPITAL INPATIENT PRICING AND TIERED OUTPATIENT PRICING

5% Proposed

Rate Increase Sutter Banner Dignity Prime

Note CPT Current Effective 8/1/17 Percentile Barton Auburn Marshall Lassen Mammoth Sierra Plumas Eastern St. Mary's Northern 11 Hospital 11 Hospital 11 Hospital 11 Hospital

Reference Code TFHD TFHD Ranking Average Median Memorial Faith Medical Medical Hospital Nevada District Plumas Renown Regional Nevada Average Median Average % Var. Median % Var.

Visit - Level 1 (A) 99281 351$     369$     73% 328$     322$     425$    334$    706$    277$    158$    449$    220$    182$    323$     321$     176$     325$    321$    13.5% 14.8%

Visit - Level 2 (A) (B) 99282 595$     625$     45% 617$     639$     884$    833$    1,119$     444$    226$    893$    347$    345$    717$     654$     314$     616$    654$    1.4% -4.5%

Visit - Level 3 (A) (B) 99283 909$     954$     55% 1,011$    922$     1,239$     1,545$     1,985$     776$    414$    1,451$     577$    524$    1,114$     889$     664$     1,016$     889$    -6.1% 7.4%

Visit - Level 4 (A) (B) 99284 1,469$    1,542$     55% 1,706$    1,492$    2,555$     2,691$     2,785$     1,442$     958$    2,900$     867$    773$    1,785$     1,166$     1,004$     1,721$     1,442$     -10.4% 7.0%

Visit - Level 5 (A) 99285 2,377$    2,496$     55% 2,569$    2,357$    3,684$     3,939$     3,900$     2,218$     1,442$     4,460$     1,278$     1,013$     2,755$     1,636$     2,013$     2,576$     2,218$     -3.1% 12.5%

Basic Metabolic Panel (B) 80048 102$     107$     27% 172$     134$     309$    170$    112$    122$    92$     64$    146$     97$     203$     439$     208$     178$     146$     -40.0% -26.6%

Blood Gas Analysis, including O2 saturation (B) 82805 218$     229$     50% 315$     229$     N/A 524$    88$    256$     695$     N/A 189$     225$     N/A N/A N/A 330$     241$     -30.5% -4.9%

Complete Blood Count, automated (B) 85027 72$     76$     36% 98$     99$     210$    119$    55$    104$    52$     41$    96$     74$     102$     144$     102$     100$     102$     -24.3% -25.6%

Complete Blood Count, with differential WBC, automated (B) 85025 92$     97$     27% 125$     125$     275$    122$    63$    108$    47$     43$    139$     137$     127$     213$     132$     128$     127$     -24.5% -24.1%

Comprehensive Metabolic Panel (B) 80053 126$     132$     36% 187$     176$     293$    198$    181$    107$    81$     66$    170$     123$     221$     435$     231$     191$     181$     -30.9% -26.9%

Cratine Kinase (CK), (CPK), Total (B) 82550 84$     88$     27% 116$     110$     231$    130$    68$    172$    109$     47$    111$     74$     131$     104$     124$     118$     111$     -25.4% -20.5%

Lipid Panel (B) 80061 159$     167$     73% 156$     152$     231$    224$    124$    110$    96$     86$    164$     157$     139$     223$     146$     155$     146$     8.0% 14.2%

Partial Thromboplastin Time (B) 85730 78$     82$     36% 131$     142$     214$    162$    64$    180$    71$     64$    138$     72$     147$     234$     147$     136$     147$     -39.7% -44.2%

Prothrombin Time (B) 85610 51$     54$     9% 81$     70$     113$    77$    55$    57$    71$     49$    105$     86$     62$     173$     70$     83$     71$     -35.8% -24.6%

Thyroid Stimulating Hormone (TSH) (B) 84443 200$     210$     82% 172$     192$     234$    185$    136$    118$    77$     102$    190$     195$     193$     224$     196$     168$     190$     24.9% 10.5%

Troponin, Quantitative (B) 84484 183$     192$     45% 209$     195$     345$    252$    149$    162$    109$     79$    198$     115$     268$     367$     274$     211$     198$     -8.8% -3.0%

Urinalysis, without microscopy (B) 81002-81003 32$     34$     18% 59$     53$     67$    52$     29$    68$    44$     38$    53$     68$     74$     32$     154$     62$     53$     -45.5% -36.6%

Urinalysis, with microscopy (B) 81000-81001 39$     41$     10% 66$     66$     N/A 66$     43$    90$     76$     35$    105$     82$     101$     46$     45$     69$     71$     -40.6% -42.3%

Xray - Chest two views (B) 71020 318$     334$     27% 394$     367$     546$     368$     247$    405$     357$     538$    239$     306$     440$     366$     582$     399$     368$     -16.4% -9.3%

Xray - Lower Back - four views (B) 72110 579$     608$     27% 803$     710$     954$     663$     1,286$     699$     529$     1,217$     457$     443$     722$     1,023$     1,040$     821$     722$     -26.0% -15.8%

MRI - Head or Brain without contrast followed by contrast (B) 70553 3,858$    4,051$     45% 4,179$    4,263$    5,450$     5,466$     5,779$     2,535$     3,148$     3,378$     3,332$     1,863$     4,476$     4,844$     5,832$     4,191$     4,476$     -3.3% -9.5%

Mammography - Screening, Bilateral (B) 77057 290$     305$     25% 367$     342$     477$     336$     485$    277$     115$     602$    363$     342$     N/A N/A N/A 375$     353$     -18.7% -13.6%

US - OB, 14 weeks or more, transabdominal (B) 76805 730$     767$     27% 888$     900$     1,108$     1,042$     902$    898$     799$     698$    478$     699$     1,022$     1,022$     1,218$     899$     902$     -14.7% -15.0%

US - Abdomen complete (B) 76700 730$     767$     27% 1,152$    1,126$    1,830$     1,335$     1,435$     1,020$     732$     1,590$     600$     659$     1,175$     1,076$     1,603$     1,187$     1,175$     -35.4% -34.8%

CT Scan - Pelvis, with contrast (B) 72193 2,228$    2,339$     36% 2,767$    2,730$    4,012$     3,361$     3,690$     1,691$     2,862$     1,971$     1,790$     2,107$     2,865$     2,598$     3,923$     2,806$     2,862$     -16.6% -18.3%

CT Scan - Head or Brain without contrast (B) 70450 1,464$    1,537$     36% 2,145$    2,214$    3,108$     2,709$     2,964$     1,360$     2,123$     1,363$     1,157$     1,453$     2,304$     2,476$     3,191$     2,201$     2,304$     -30.1% -33.3%

CT Scan - Abdomen with contrast (B) 74160 2,228$    2,339$     36% 2,895$    2,824$    4,454$     3,369$     4,233$     1,830$     2,914$     1,971$     1,568$     2,107$     3,023$     2,734$     4,204$     2,946$     2,914$     -20.6% -19.7%

Intensive Care Unit 6,823$    7,164$     57% 7,318$    6,905$    9,104$     10,771$     9,184$     3,216$     6,273$     6,645$     N/A N/A N/A 6,188$     N/A 7,340$     6,645$     -2.4% 7.8%

Medical/Surgical Unit - Private 2,996$    3,146$     56% 3,146$    3,141$    3,955$     4,435$     4,200$     1,992$     2,576$     2,944$     1,570$     3,136$     N/A 3,507$     N/A 3,146$     3,136$     0.0% 0.3%

Nursery Unit 938$     985$     29% 1,536$    1,138$    1,195$     N/A 3,570$     1,080$     942$     2,487$     478$     N/A N/A 1,550$     N/A 1,615$     1,195$     -39.0% -17.6%

Skilled Nursing Facility 490$     490$     33% 1,123$    581$     N/A 2,981$     N/A 672$     N/A N/A N/A 350$     N/A N/A N/A 1,334$     672$     -63.3% -27.1%

Average of all 25 common outpatient procedures noted by (B) above 673$     707$     36% 854$     867$     1,267$     1,040$     1,123$     601$     672$     804$    543$     525$     931$     934$     1,105$     822$     738$     -14.0% -4.2%

(C) (C) (C) 

(D) (D) 

Note Reference: 2013 Rm Rts

(A) Level 1 - low severity - example a toothache with treatment other than a prescription, Plan B Rx.

Level 2 - low to moderate severity - minor illness with no lab or x-ray other than a simple strep screen or UTI, abrasions, small cuts with no suturing

Level 3 - moderate severity - labs, x-rays, medications simple lacerations with sutures, simple asthma that resolves, sprains

Level 4 - moderate to high severity - IV’s for hydration, IV medications, splinting of fractures that are straight forward, simple chest pain, asthma that needs repeated breathing treatment or medications

Level 5 - high severity - traumas, transfers, GI bleeds, overdoses, sedation for fracture reductions

(B) Charge is listed in the 25 most common outpatient procedures performed in a hospital per the OSHPD web site listed below under Source.

(C) Facility has different tiered pricing for Inpatient and Outpatient.  Pricing for Laboratory reflects the Outpatient pricing.

(D) Facility has different tiered pricing for Inpatient and Outpatient.  Pricing for Diagnostic Imaging reflects the Outpatient pricing.

Charge is lower than TFHD

Charge is higher than TFHD

TFHDs percentile ranking is lower than the 50th

TFHDs percentile ranking is higher than the 50th

Source:  California Hospitals - Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (OSHPD) Healthcare Information Division - Annual Financial Data - Hospital Chargemasters ( http://www.oshpd.ca.gov/Chargemaster ), charges effective 6/1/2016.

Nevada Hospitals - MedAssets, 2014 data

Charges for Tahoe Forest Hospital District are as of today.

Definitions: Median - is the middle value in a list ordered from smallest to largest.

N/A - Not Applicable or Not Available

2014 Data

NEVADA

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

 

R
o

o
m

L
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
D

ia
g

n
o

s
ti

c
 I
m

a
g

in
g

R
o

o
m

 

R
a

te
s

Inclusive of TFHD

CALIFORNIA

Page 99 of 124



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL SYSTEM
Tahoe Forest Hospital

Incline Village Community Hospital

Page 100 of 124



Board of Directors

Charles Zipkin, M.D.

President

Medical Executive

Committee

Chris Arth, M.D.

Chief of Staff

OB/Peds

Department

Peter Taylor, M.D.

Chair

Oleg Vayner, M.D.

Vice Chair

Medicine 

Department

Greg Paul, M.D.

Chair

Anesthesia 

Department

Brad Thomas, M.D.

Chair

Emergency 

Department

Jonathan Laine, M.D.

Chair

Surgery Department

Ellen Cooper, M.D.

Chair

IVCH

General Staff

Johanna Koch, M.D.

Chair

Officers:

Josh Scholnick, M.D. – Vice Chief of Staff

Casey Jowers, M.D. – Secretary/Treasurer 

Scott Samelson, M.D. – Member- at- Large

Diagnostic Imaging

Thaddeus Laird,, M.D.

Infection Control 

Committee

P&T Committee

Tim Lombard, M.D., Chair 

Interdisciplinary 

Practice Committee

Reini Jensen, M.D.

Chair

Cancer Committee

Melissa Kaime, M.D., 

Chair

Medical Education 

Committee

Ethics Committee

Scott Samelson, M.D.

Quality Assessment Co.

Peter Taylor, M.D.

Chair

Tahoe Forest Hospital District Medical Staff

Organizational Chart

January 2017

Page 101 of 124



DefinitionsDefinitions

1) Credentialing – a standardized process of inquiry which 

validates the candidates identity, background, education and 

training 

2) Privileging – a standardized process determining the 

boundaries of each applicant’s clinical knowledge, skills, 

competency, and as granted by the governing board to render 

specific professional, diagnostic, therapeutic, medical, surgical l, 

or dental services in a TFHS facility or in connection with its 

programs

3) Appointment – determining whether a candidate will 

be a member of the medical or staff and if so, in what 

membership category

Page 102 of 124



DefinitionsDefinitions

4) Peer Evaluation – Formal documentation received during the initial & re-appt

for staff privileges process. 

5) Peer Review – A participatory process that monitors important aspects of care

provided by a hospital’s individual practitioners. Results of peer review are used

in the medical staff reappointment process as well as for ongoing professional 

practice evaluation. When the results of peer review indicate a need for performancel, 

improvement at the individual and/or aggregate levels, appropriate quality

improvement activities are undertaken to ensure that improvement occurs.

6) Performance Indicator/Measure -– A clearly defined statement describing 
Information to be collected for purposes of improving processes and outcomes 

of care.

Page 103 of 124



DefinitionsDefinitions

7) Quality Assurance -– Systematic monitoring and evaluation of  the various 

aspects of a project or service. 

8) Quality Improvement -– The practice of continuously assessing and adjusting 
performance using statistically and scientifically accepted procedures. 

An ongoing process to measure and improve performance.

9) QA+QI (OPPE – Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation) – A
screening tool to evaluate all practitioners who have been granted 
privileges and to identify those clinicians who might be delivering 
an unacceptable quality of care. [Note: May also be used to 
identify those who have no quality of care issues.]

Page 104 of 124



Credentialing’s Triple Aim

§ Protect the patient

§ Facilitate clinical practice

§ Support organizational goals

Granting clinical privileges requires:

First , that the requestor is qualified to apply

Second , the requestor has direct or relevant recent 
Experience (training, experience, judgment)

Third , the experience has been of acceptable quality (competency)

Page 105 of 124



Application for AppointmentApplication for Appointment

Step One Qualifications for Membership

“No one is permitted to practice without a ticket”

Application Received
and eligibility data 

recorded

Is applicant qualified for 
Medical Staff

Membership & Hospital Privileges?

Begin 
Processing

Notification sent 
To applicant

Processing
Ceased

Yes
No

Page 106 of 124



Privileging Privileging ––

Governing RegulationsGoverning Regulations

§ Privileges must be individually assessed

§ Privileges granted and renewed on the basis of 

criteria that cite training and demonstrated 

competence

§ Not all practitioners in a specialty can be assumed to 

have equivalent competence

§ Some privileges may be performed by practitioners in 

more than one specialty (cross specialty lines)

Page 107 of 124



AN APPLICATION IS INCOMPLETE IF:AN APPLICATION IS INCOMPLETE IF:

§ Supporting information is not supplied

§ Questions or concerns are not resolved

§ There are unexplained gaps in professional experience

§ There are unanswered questions

Page 108 of 124



Qualifications for MembershipQualifications for Membership

1) Unrestricted Licensure in California and/or Nevada

2) Unrestricted DEA (CA and/or NV)

3) Not terminated from another staff for competency or behavioral 

concerns

4) Not excluded from CMS (Medicare)

5) Board Certification or Admissibility

6) Appropriate training and demonstrated current competence

7) Willingness to discharge the responsibilities of the medical staff

8) No felony convictions.

9) Request consistent with the hospital’s mission and resources 

Page 109 of 124



FOCUSED PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE FOCUSED PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE 

EVALUATION (EVALUATION “ ”

v Assess privilege specific competence

v Proctoring

v Provide guidance

v Identify and address concerns:

: “Cases that fall out because of perceived problems, undesirable outcomes, or are part of a 

disturbing trend will be reviewed

. ”

Page 110 of 124



CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Initial Applicants]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Initial Applicants]

Category 1Category 1 (clean file-no issues)

a) Consecutively completed all training within 3 years of 

submitting application

b) Privileges requested are consistent with core as defined 

for that specialty

d) No suggestions of potential problems & no prior 

malpractice or disciplinary actions, licensure restrictions 

or any type of investigations in last 2 years

Page 111 of 124



CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Initial Applicants]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Initial Applicants]

Category 2 (changes)Category 2 (changes)

a) Training not consecutive or completed training more than 3 years

before receipt of application

b) Has greater than 4 current medical licenses

c) Has requested privileges that vary from those consistent with core for

that specialty or varies substantially

d) Evaluation not received in prescribed format or negative responses

e) A Cat 1 application in which any of the recommendations of the 

chairmen vary

f) Applicant has a malpractice claims history

Page 112 of 124



CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Initial Applicants]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Initial Applicants]

Category 3 (controversial)Category 3 (controversial)

a) Current or previously successful challenge to license or registration

b) Involuntary termination, limitation, reduction, denial, or loss of 

appointment or privileges at any other hospital or other entity

c) An unusual pattern of, or an excessive # of, professional liability

actions, resulting in a final judgment against applicant

d) Practitioner who is currently or has previously participated in a health

professionals assistance program

Page 113 of 124



CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]

Category 1 (no issues)Category 1 (no issues)

a) Requested privileges that are consistent with core

b) All references contain only favorable or neutral 

evaluations

c) No pending or past investigations or reports of 

disciplinary action

d) No questions raised about qualifications or privileges

e) No negative findings, e.g. quality of care, behavior, 

compliance with regulations

f) No malpractice claims in last 2 years

CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]

Category 1 (no issues)Category 1 (clean file-no issues)

a) Requested privileges that are consistent with core

b) All references contain only favorable or neutral 

evaluations

c) No pending or past investigations or reports of 

disciplinary action

d) No questions raised about qualifications or privileges

e) No negative findings, e.g. quality of care, behavior, 

compliance with regulations

f) No malpractice claims in last 2 years

Page 114 of 124



CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]

Category 2, Cont’dCategory 2 

a) Applicant has requested privileges that vary from those 

consistent with the core privileges as defined for that specialty

b) Evaluation contained neutral or negative responses

c) Pending or past investigations or reports of disciplinary action

d) Questions have been raised by a member of the medical staff

regarding applicant’s qualifications for appointment or clinical privileges 

e) Peer review information contains negative findings, regarding quality

of care, behavior, or compliance with regulations.

Page 115 of 124



CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]

Category 2 (contCategory 2 (cont’d)

f) Has less than 20 hospital encounters in previous  

2 years (low volume practitioner)

g) Any other concern raised by any person which 

may cause concern to the Credentials/MEC 

h) Currently participating in a health professional’s

assistance or diversion program

Page 116 of 124



CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]CATEGORICAL REVIEW [Reappointments]

Category 3 (controversial) Category 3 (controversial) 

One or more of the following not previously reported:

a) Current or previously successful challenge to any license or 

registration

b) Involuntary termination, limitation, reduction, denial, or loss 

of appointment or privileges at any other hospital or entity

c) Unusual pattern of, or an excessive number of, professional 

liability actions, resulting in a final judgment against the 

applicant

Page 117 of 124



The Power of the PyramidThe Power of the Pyramid

Take Corrective Action

Manage Poor Performance

Provide Periodic Feedback

Measure Actual 
Performance

Set and Communicate 
Expectations

Appoint Excellent Physicians

Page 118 of 124



QUESTIONS?

Page 119 of 124



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

  
QUALITY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
Tuesday, July 11, 2017 at 12:00 p.m. 

Human Resources Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10024 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

Alyce Wong, RN, Chair; Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code 
Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee 
may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, 
or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 5/9/2017 .......................................................................... ATTACHMENT  
 
6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. 2017 Quality Committee Focus .............................................................................. ATTACHMENTS 

Discuss status of BOD bylaw changes specific to the BOD Quality Committee focus, membership, 
meetings, and accountability.   
BOD Quality Committee Focus 2017 was approved on March 14, 2017 and available for reference 
during the meeting. 

 

6.2. Patient & Family Centered Care (PFCC)  
6.2.1. Patient & Family Advisory Council Update  ................................................. ATTACHMENT 

An update will be provided related to the activities of the Patient and Family Advisory Council 
(PFAC). 

6.2.2. Patient Experience Presentation 
Identify patients that may be interested in sharing their healthcare story at an upcoming TFHD Board 
of Directors (BOD) or BOD Quality Committee meeting. 

 
6.3. BOD Quality Reporting Calendar  ............................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

Review the proposed quality reporting calendar and discuss topics of interest, the frequency of 
reports, and if this should be shared during open or closed session. 
 

6.4. Hospice/Palliative Care Program 
Provide an update of these programs and the plan to educate our community about access to these 
services. 

Page 120 of 124



QUALITY COMMITTEE – Agenda Continued 
Tuesday, July 11, 2017 

 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
6.5. Patient Safety  ......................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

6.5.1 Educational Article 
Review the No Room for Error article at http://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/news/articles/no-
room-for-error and discuss lessons learned and areas for improvement for our organization.   
6.5.2 AHRQ Patient Safety Culture Survey 

Provide a status report on the biennial survey conducted in April/May 2017.   
 

6.6. Quality Metrics ........................................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
Review key quality and service metrics, how this is shared throughout the organization, and how 
plans for improvement are developed and monitored. 
 

6.7. Medical Staff Quality Committee (MSQAC)  
Discuss the option of having two Board members attend the MSQAC closed session to discuss case 
review process improvement.   
 

6.8. Board Quality Education  
The Committee will review and discuss topics for future board quality education.  Identify best 
practice topics for review at future meetings.   
  

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE  
The date and time of the next committee meeting, Tuesday, September 19, 2017, at 12:00 p.m. 
will be confirmed. 
  

9. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 121 of 124

http://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/news/articles/no-room-for-error
http://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/news/articles/no-room-for-error


 

 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
BOARD PERSONNEL COMMITTEE- 

RETIREMENT SUBCOMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

Monday, July 24, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 
Eskridge Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 
Alyce Wong, R.N., Chair; Dale Chamblin, Board Member 

 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 
54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose 
to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the 
item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 5/16/2017 ......................................................................... ATTACHMENT  

 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Multnomah Group Retirement Plan Review 

Multnomah Group will review the investments and plan assets for the District’s retirement 
plans. 

6.1.1. Status of Healthcare Service Plan 
6.1.2. Plan Investment Review ..................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.1.3. Plan Asset Review ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

6.2. Fidelity Investments Retirement Plan Auto Enrollment Update 
Personnel Committee will receive an update on the timing of the change to auto enrollment for 
employees. 

6.3. Fidelity Investments Retirement Plan Review and Education Planning ................... ATTACHMENT 
Personnel Committee will receive a business plan review presentation from Fidelity Investments. 

6.4. Employee Engagement Survey Results 
Personnel Committee will discuss the results of a recent employee engagement survey. 

6.5. CEO Incentive Compensation Criteria 
Personnel Committee will discuss development of CEO Incentive Compensation Criteria metrics. 
 

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE 
Personnel Committee will discuss its next meeting date.   

Page 122 of 124



PERSONNEL COMMITTEE – Agenda Continued 
Monday, July 24, 2017 

 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

  

9.     ADJOURN 

Page 123 of 124



*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

  Page 1 of 1 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
     Tuesday, July 25, 2017 at 11:00 a.m.  

Eskridge Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Dale Chamblin, Chair; Mary Brown, Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board Clerk 24 
hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot 
take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly 
answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 

5. CLOSED SESSION 
5.1. Report Involving Trade Secrets (Health & Safety Code § 32106)   

Proposed New Program: One (1) item 
Estimated date of public disclosure: 10/31/2017 
 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 6/20/2017 ........................................................................ ATTACHMENT  
 

7. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
7.1. Financial Reports 

7.1.1. Financial Report – Preliminary June 2017 ........................................................ ATTACHMENT 
7.1.2. Quarterly Review – Preliminary FY 17 Financial Status of Separate Entities ... ATTACHMENT 
7.1.3. Quarterly Review – Payor Mix .......................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
7.1.4. TIRHR Expenditure Report ................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

7.2. General Obligation (GO) Bond Property Tax Rate Calculation and Resolution ............ ATTACHMENT 
The Finance Committee will review and discuss a board resolution about the GO Bond Property 
Tax Rate Calculation. 

7.3. FY18 Budget – Rate Increase ........................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Finance Committee will review and discuss a 5% rate increase effective 8/1/17. 

 
8. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

9. AGENDA INPUT FOR NEXT FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING ......................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

10. NEXT MEETING DATE ...................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

11. ADJOURN 

Page 124 of 124


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	AGENDA
	2017-07-27 Regular Board Meeting_FINAL Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
	12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
	12.1. July 2017 Employee of the Month.pdf
	12.2. Karen Sessler MD Receives Spirit of Giving Award.pdf
	12.3. Beckers top 62 Critical Access Hospitals.pdf

	13. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
	13.1. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Consent Agenda.pdf

	14. CONSENT CALENDAR
	14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes
	2017-04-27 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	2017-06-20 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	2017-06-22 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	2017-06-28 Adjourned Regular Board Meeting_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

	14.2. Financial Report
	14.2.1. Financial Report - June 2017.pdf

	14.3. Informational Reports
	14.3.1. CEO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
	14.3.2. COO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
	14.3.3. CNO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
	14.3.4. CIO Board Report - July 2017.pdf
	14.3.5. CMO Board Report - July 2017.pdf


	15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION
	15.1. Mammography Replacement Project Bid.pdf
	15.2. Cannabis Land Use Considerations.pdf
	15.3. General Obligation Bond Tax Rate for FY2017-2018.pdf
	15.4. FY18 Budget - Rate Increase.pdf

	16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION
	16.1. Board Education
	16.1.1. Credentialing and Peer Review Presentation.pdf
	16.1.2. Estes Park Conference discussion

	16.2. Board Strategic Goals

	17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY
	18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	18.1. 2017-07-11 Board Quality Committee_Agenda.pdf
	18.2. 2017-07-24 Board Personnel-Retirement Subcommittee_Agenda.pdf
	18.3. 2017-07-25 Board Finance Committee_Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 19 - 24: See Agenda
	25. ADJOURN

